Sophia Grande-Lawlor, Editor

Public Meeting

All are welcome. No admission charge.

Tuesday, 24 June 2025
Doors open at 6:30; 7:15 presentation

Nancy Saunders Maitland will be the
speaker at our next public meeting on
June 24, 2025 at the Linwood

‘ ‘ Community Centre, 5279 Ament Road,
WELLESLEY. 4 < Linwood, ON. Nancy was the curator of
the Wellesley Township Heritage and
Historical Society from 2010-2023.

She will speak about the history of Wellesley Township and how it is reflected in records and
objects the WTHHS collection.

Seale 40 Chuins to an Lnok.

For more information contact rychmills@golden.net or 519.742.4990

whs.ca

“Have news to share?

Send the newsletter committee updates to
whs1912newsletter@gmail.com

Deadline for Fall 2025 newsletter Friday,
August 29, 2025.



http://whs.ca/
mailto:rychmills@golden.net,

Mark your calendar

More 2025 Public Meetings

This year's public meetings will be held on two Tuesday evenings and two Saturday
afternoons.

All WHS meetings are free; members and non-members are invited. The WHS Book
Table will be open at all meetings. Keep an eye on www.whs.ca for further details. As
well, reminder e-mails will be sent out.

Tuesday, September 9, 2025: Attendees will gather at the Maryhill Community
Centre. Elysia DelLaurentis has put together a dynamic feature called “Rough Justice in
19th Century Ontario.” Members may renew their WHS annual dues with the
membership committee as well. Doors open 6:30, program at 7:15.

Saturday, November 15, 2025: To wrap up the meetings for 2025, November 15 will be
the WHS annual general meeting.

Full details will be sent by email to all members a few days before the meeting.

For more information on these WHS meetings, check www.whs.ca or contact
rychmills@golden.net

We acknowledge that the land on which we meet are the lands traditionally used by the
Haudenosaunee, Anishnaabeg, and Neutral peoples. We also acknowledge the enduring
presence and deep traditional knowledge, laws, and philosophies of the Indigenous people
with whom we share this land today. We are all treaty people with a responsibility to
honour all our relations.



WHS Plaques Committee

Plans Unveiling of 24th Plaque

Submitted by Sondro Parks

With its first plague unveiling in 1925, the Waterloo Historical Society Plaques
Committee is now planning the début of its 24™ plaque - the Idylwild Park Interpretive
Plaque.

Those first 23 were bronze plaques, a very durable material with a few drawbacks: text is
limited to no more than 100 words, which makes them more commemorative
memorials than educational tools, and they are prone to vandalism and theft for the
value of the metal to an unscrupulous foundry.

The Idylwild Park panel is the first full-colour illustrated storyboard or interpretive plaque
unveiled by the WHS, perhaps a sign of things to come. It recalls the history of the
former Idylwild Park on Cambridge’s Mill Run Trail, complete with colour images
supplied by our own Ray Ruddy.
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The GP&H “followed a course very dose to the banks of the Spoed River,
entering a wooded area with tal elims, maples end evergreens — a perfect setting
for one of the most popular playground, pienic and recreattonal arcas In the
district?” wrate Dltver Kummer in the 1870 Waterloo Historical Soctety annul
valume. He condluded the meaning of the parks name was a “poemn in the wilds™

“The 10-acre Iylwild lasted for just 20 years and then It was gene,a victim of the
‘First World War and the rise in popularity of the antsmobileand other mere
urban parks.

HISTORY

By 1896, the GR&H carried up to 35,000 passengers and 1,000 tons of frelght each
‘month, mare than enough to pay operating costs. Like every other electric

The landscape of the site has grown over, eroded or e
Gates, pavilions, bridges and other structures

Electric rail car at entry gate to Idyhwild Park.

Eatry gote to Mwild Park.

interurban railway it had  park along its lines that could only be reached by its
‘passengers, a way ta stimulate weekend rail travel,

Tdylwild Park opened in 1895, accessed every 15 o 30 minutes during operating
hours. Park goers were given ribbons that kdentified them as patrons, fust ¢
from Preston and 10¢ frem Galt. The park catered to familles, private parties
and annual group picnics. “I was not at all uncemmen for the rallway to shunt
In from Preston junction a train load of plcnickers from as far swey ss Hamilton

to enjoy the great 0 thewilds of Tdylwild”
explatned Kummer.
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1896 plam of kyheild Pk by land sarveyor AL McCulock.

AMENITIES

Tdylwid encompassed Lands on bath banks of the Speed, as well as a large island
in between, Tvo wooden footbridges accessed the island, plus one across the river.

The larger of the two pavillons, 50'by 50, cauld hold 100 dancers or more.
As “myriads of burst here and there
through the deep shadows of the trees and frame the pavilion™

A refreshment booth and stare pravided soft drinks, fce cream and “free
ot water” recalled Kummer. “No doubt some did bring along something.
stronger than pop?

Miatural pathways allowed strlls harough the woods. Boardwalks, harsestos
s, tree swings, a dock and boats were among the amenities, East of the
‘plenic grounds wasa five-acre athletic feld for bell games, tennis, races
and other sports.

“The Speed River at that pertod was still clean and. offered wading for the
Tiddies? noted Kummer, “and [opportunities for] thase who cared to try their
Iuck st fishing”

‘Though parents didn't have to worry about paison vy, Idylwild was nicdkmamed
“Mosquito Park” as that Insect thrived in the surrounding wetlands.

ELECTRIC RAILWAY

Electric power made street rallways viable from 1885, One of the earliest
Interurban electric trains in Canads, the Galt & Preston Street Railway,
Tuly 26, 1894, with added in 1809,

‘As demand for hallday excursions grew, the electric rafllway was Instrumental
in the growth of the tourist trade in Preston. There, mineral springs offered
purported health benefits and resort hotels such as the Kress and Del Monte
provided luurious accommodatien, The streetcars themselves were described.
by a local newspaper, “after the most modem style ... The seats are finely
‘uphelstered; heveled glass windows decorate the ends and the car contains four
dectricheaters ... Incandescent electric lghts, with very pretty globes,

‘hang from the cefling, and the carhas a seating capacity for about 30 passengers™

The GPEH merged with the Preston & Berlin Strest Railway in 1908 and in 1914
was Incorporated as the Grand River Railway.

DEMISE OF THE PARK

In 1917, 1dylwild Park was dosed permanentlys several factors leading ta its
demise: spring flacding: growing populariy of the autmobile; the First Warld

‘Wartack staff for more impartant duties; and the establishment of Riverside Park
In nearby Preston.

Most of the Hespeler branch tracks were moved away from the river In 1918 due
to flvoding, Theland continued to be used unofficially for plenics infa the 19405,
Just a short hike from Speedsville Road.

Picnic goers enjay Mylwild Park, c1910, photo taken by Wilson: gf&lb-
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Erected by the Waterloo Historical
Society (www.whs.ca) in 2024 with
the co-operation of the City of
Cambridge and the Grande River

Conservation Authority.

We acknowledge that these I
the Haudenosaune, Anishinaal

Kknowledge, laws and p
wham we share this la

responsibility to



Idylwild Park, on the Speed River in what is now Cambridge, attracted people from
across Southwestern Ontario, via the Grand Trunk Railway and the Galt, Preston &
Hespeler (GP&H) electric railway, which became operational in 1894 with the park
opening the next year. Like every other electric interurban railway, it had a park along its
lines that could only be reached by its passengers, a way to stimulate weekend rail
travel. The 10-acre park lasted just over 20 years, and then it was gone, a victim of the
First World War, and the rise in popularity of the automobile and other more urban
parks.

As the plaque location is along the Mill Run Trail, one kilometre in from the trailhead at
Beaverdale Road, the Plagues Committee feel the site is not very accessible to many of
our WHS members. They have chosen a limited unveiling on July 8 with WHS Board
members and representatives from the City of Cambridge and the Grand River
Conservation Authority. If you would still like to attend the unveiling, please contact
Sandra Parks at sparksresearch7@gmail.com and | will send you an invitation and
directions.

Watch for details of the unveiling of the Idylwild Park plague in the next newsletter.

“Hole 1n the Ground

Submitted by Jon Fear

Sometimes even a hole in the ground can offer us both some local history and a good
story.

That's the case for the site of an 18-storey residential project currently under
construction along Weber Street East in Kitchener, directly opposite Sunnyside Public
School at 1042 Weber St. E.

For more than 60 years the site at Weber and Dellroy Avenue has included a gaping
hole, dug in the early 1960s when concrete footings for a proposed Lord Kitchener motor
hotel were put in place. The project was later abandoned and subsequent attempts to
develop the site, which had earlier held St. Luke’s Evangelical Lutheran Church, also fell
through. Decades passed, but the hole remained.
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Savic Homes of Kitchener is now in the process of building the tower plus an attached
four-storey podium along Weber Street. Together they will hold 238 rental suites. Also on
the site is an existing six-storey apartment building at 15 Dellroy, the one part of the 1960s
proposal that did get built.

The Lord Kitchener hotel was a project spearheaded by a local developer, Gustav Ruder of
Ruder Construction, who in 1964 told the Kitchener-Waterloo Record (today's Waterloo
Region Record) his three-storey hotel would include a swimming pool, health centre,
dining room, ballroom and Japanese garden. A statue of Lord Kitchener, the British
military hero for whom the City of Kitchener is named, was to stand near the entrance.

For several years the abandoned hotel plan was a news story regularly updated in the
pages of the Record, where the property was described in the early 1970s as a “glaring
eyesore” and a “grossly deteriorated” development site. Eventually the concrete footings
were removed or buried for safety reasons.

To be fair to Ruder, the
geography of the Sunnyside
area began to change
dramatically not long after he
acquired the corner site in 1962.
At the time, Weber Street was
only starting to be extended
east into that section of the city.
The hotel project was intended
to front on King Street East. But
when plans for a new Highway
8 entrance leading to the
downtown were announced -- a
sunken controlled-access
expressway to be builtin a




concrete channel far below
the level of King Street East --
the hotel idea no longer made
sense. Motorists speeding
along the lower Highway 8
might look up and spot a hotel,
but in those days there was no
GPS to help them actually get
there.

Since then, of course, most of
the King Street East roadway in ||
this area has disappeared and
Weber Street East has been
extended through the
Sunnyside neighbourhood and
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This is oll there s to the Lord Kitchener Hotel project at Weber and Dellroy Streets. Money troubles killed it several years ago.

beyond to become the major

four-lane arterial road it is Hole-in-ground eyesore may soon be a high-rise
tod ay. Also |Ong gone a re ma ny One of the most noticeable Weber and King Streets and with extfendedreinlorcinﬁ rods, remained a glaring eyesore building, 128 will be located

residential eyesores in Kitch- erect a 14storey 106-unit indicate the location of what €ver since. below grade, leaving 24 on the
_F K' S E mﬁ ?u}aml{gldl;ﬁ::: building adjacent to it. was to be the underground “The. existing six-storey surface. Vehicles using the
ormer N g treet aSt tion is approved by Kitchener  For several ‘years the part Dbarking garage in the hote] apartment structure has dete- syrface spaces will be screen-
planning committee and coun- of the property which fronts —complex. ;Zﬁtedo‘mﬁre “f’lems;f:iﬁ e, ed by decorative masonry

H H cil. ; on Weber Street has been a A letter asking residents to " i walls and landscaping.

uSl nesses | n t e a rea s e, . curity of a succession of 3

1 Granite Investment and De- large gaping hole containing comment on the rezoning ‘ap- owners and requires upgrad- “The applicant proposes to
ents Ltd. is proposing concrete footings for what plication- says that through a invest heavily in landscaping
ays gl ing. y ping

to upgrade its existing. six- was su] I“to have been long chain of financial and in order that the visual up-

i n Cl u d i n g a Da i ry Qu ee n O ut | et storey, 46-unit apartment on the Lord Kitchener Hotel. " other events, the project was  Of the 152 parking spaces grading of the site be max-

property bounded by Dellroy,  Several concrete piers, abandoned and the site has for the proposed 14-storey imized” 1

that was just west of the Ruder The kw Record April 6, 1973

Construction site.

When St. Luke's opened in 1941, it stood at King Street East and Delmonte Avenue in the
former Waterloo Township. But in 1952 Kitchener expanded to bring that part of the
township within its boundaries. It also changed the name of Delmonte Avenue to Dellroy
Avenue.

After selling its property to Ruder, St. Luke's built a larger church building at 317 Franklin
St. N,, near Sunnyside Home. It opened in 1963. The history section of the church’s website
has a wonderful photo showing its former church building at King and Delmonte.

The story doesn't end there. A Record story in December of 1962 described how the old St.
Luke's was taken apart “beam by beam and pew by pew” by Ruder Construction and
carried across the city to be rebuilt on Fischer Drive as St. George's Anglican Church, now
St. George's of Forest Hill Anglican Church at 321 Fischer-Hallman Rd., Kitchener. The St.
George's website notes that the St. Luke’s parts, including some memorial windows, are
preserved in the chapel, narthex and church offices, all found in the older section of
today’s church.



News

Wilmot Heritage Day

Submitted by Sophia Grande-Lawlor, photographs
by Harold Russell

Another successful Heritage Day was carried out on
April 26th in New Dundee. Rescheduled due to
weather, the event had a great turnout. Kristen
Hahn delivered a great talk on the upcoming five
volume series The Historic Buildings of New
Hamburg: Writing the Genealogy of a Town, and
exhibitors impressed attendees and each other
with excellent displays and information. Thank you
to Harold Russell for great photographs of the day!

Wellesley Township Heritage and Historical
Society

Submitted by Nancy Maitland

| am thrilled to introduce our new curator to you!
Sophia Grande-Lawlor comes to us with a Masters
degree in Library and Information Science from
Western University. She has worked as Assistant
Archivist at the Wellington County Museum and
Archives. Since being hired as our curator she has
accepted a new role as Archives Associate in the
Wilfrid Laurier Archives and Special Collections.
Sophia is already active in her role with us and
attended the Council meeting on March 25. | know
she will be helpful with Historical Room activities
and outreach as well as our built heritage
endeavours.

Newsletter

Consider switching to email for faster, eco-friendly
news updates! Send an email to
whs1912newsletter@gmail.com

if you are interested in switching to the e-
newsletter.




North ®umlfries “Historical Preservation Society

holds inaugural Annual General Meeting

Submitted by Irene Schmidt-Adeney

The North Dumfries Historical
Preservation Society (NDHPS) held its
first Annual General Meeting since
becoming incorporated under the
Ontario Historical Society last year. The
meeting was held on Tuesday, May 6"
at Abe Erb in Ayr and led by Chair David
Pyper who welcomed about 20
members and guests.

Pyper gave a report on the activities of
the past year that included publishing a
historical calendar for the Ayr200
celebrations. The calendar raised over
$5,000 for the NDHPS. A quarterly =
newsletter was launched with two .2 M‘”‘f‘m<~'\
issues be published to date. The office " =
was open and the collection available to
the public on the second and fourth

Wednesday mornings of the month. o rcike S
Irene Schmidt Adeney receive certificates from Chair David Pyper.

“One major hurdle completed this year was the renewal of our Memorandum of
Understanding with the Township of North Dumfries, which will guide and direct our
mutual responsibilities and commitments over the next three years,” said Pyper.

Pyper said that steps have been taken to consider moving the archives and the NDHPS
collection into the Ayr Library. He said one of this year’s goals is to increase engagement
with the members and the public.

This year’'s major fundraiser will be a reprinting Our Today's and Yesterdays written by
Andrew Taylor. It is a history book of Ayr and North Dumfries that was last published in
the 1970s.

Treasurer Kim Bonney-Hopps reported a bank balance of $20,582.04 as of March 31, 2025,
which is the year end for the NDHPS.

Nominations for the Board of Directors were accepted by the membership with the
following members: Chair David Pyper, Vice-Chair Irene Schmidt-Adeney, Treasurer Kim
Bonney-Hopps, Directors John Gillespie, Pat Radke, Ron Sage, Jeff Stager, and Gord
Taylor. The position of secretary has not been filled, and there is room on the board for an
additional director.



David Pyper (left) and guest speaker Rych Mills (right)
section of a Tremaine Map, dating back to the 1800s.

Pyper circulated a list of volunteer
positions currently available. The jobs
range from digitizing archives, special
events committee, audio transcribing,
written transcribing, webmaster, and
cover design for the reprinting of Our
Today's and Yesterdays. The list is also
available by emailing
ndhistoricalsociety@gmail.com.

Pat Radke and Irene Schmidt-Adeney
were presented with certificates to
mark a NDHPS lifetime membership.
Lifetime memberships are available for
a one-time payment of $200.

Vice-chair Irene Schmidt-Adeney
introduced guest speaker Rych Mills.
Mills has written several local history
books, including Flash from the Past,
which is a compilation of articles from

his feature of the same name published most Saturdays in The Record. Mills is on the
Waterloo Historical Society Board if Directors, Kitchener's Victoria Park Historical Committee,
and has lectured and made presentations on a wide variety of local topics at the University
of Waterloo, Wilfrid Laurier University, and numerous public venues.

Mills spoke about his connections to North Dumfries through his ancestors, the Gress family.

The NDHPS meets on the fourth Monday of the month, between September and June, at
12:30 p.m. The meetings are held in the portable located at the North Dumfries Community

Complex west parking lot.

For more information email ndhistoricalsociety@gmail.com.



Who we are and how to reach us

Website www.whs.ca
Email whs@whs.ca

Mail to Waterloo Historical
Society c/o Grace Schmidt
Room, 85 Queen Street
North, Kitchener ON N2H
2H1

Facebook
www.facebook.com/waterl
oohs

Instagram
@waterloohistoricalsociety

Board of Directors
President: John Glass
jcglass@rogers.com

Treasurer: Jeff Shank
jeff420shank@gmail.com

Secretary: Mary Lapp
secretarywhsl912@gmail.c
om

Archivist: Vacant

Communications Chair:
Lesley Webb

Membership Chair: Mary
Anne Banks
whsmemberships1912@gm
ail.com

Editor, Newsletter: Sophia
Grande-Lawlor
whsl1912newsletter@gmail.
com

Editor, Publication
Committee Chair:
rych mills
rychmills@golden.net
519 742-4990

Plagues Committee Chair:
Warren Stauch
mmegeo@golden.net

Book Table Coordinator:
rych mills
whs@whs.ca

Programs Committee
Chair: rych mills
rychmills@golden.net
519 742-4990

Directors
Debbie Kroetsch
Ray Ruddy
David Emberly
Glenn Thorpe

Councilors

Cambridge: Vacant
Kitchener: Erin Applebee,
Jon Fear, Sandra Parks,
Harold Russell

Waterloo: Jane Britton
North Dumfries Township:
Kim Hopps, Irene Schmidt-
Adeny Wellesley Township:
Rosanne Atwater-Hallatt,
Nancy Maitland

Wilmot Township: Patty
Clarke

Woolwich Township:
Marion Roes, Diane
Strickler

Archives

gsr@kpl.org for questions
about the WHS archives
and if you have items to
donate. Please note,
donations are currently
paused.

Book Table

To donate or to buy books,
come to our meetings
and /or see
www.whs.ca/booktable/

Membership
Membership take place
from October1to
September 30. See
membership forms and
benefits at
whs.ca/membership.

Thank you for supporting
WHS with your
memberships, patronages
and donations.

Newsletter Comments,
guestions and
submissions may be sent
to the editor, Sophia
Grande-Lawlor.

Thank you for help with
and distribution of this
issue to Sandra Parks,
Jon Fear,

Mary Anne Banks, and

rych mills.
10
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